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o 
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Santa Fe, New Mexico | j | 

This matter came on fo r hearing before the New 

Mexico O i l Conservation Division, MICHAEL E. STOGNER, 

Hearing Examiner, on Thursday, May 27th, 2004, at the New 

Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department, 

1220 South Saint Francis Drive, Room 102, Santa Fe, New 

Mexico, Steven T. Brenner, C e r t i f i e d Court Reporter No. 7 

fo r the State of New Mexico. 
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WHEREUPON, the f o i i o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

8:33 a.in. : 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Hearing w i l l come t o order. 

At the request of the App l i c a n t and w i t h the 

understanding of the other p a r t i e s i n today's docket, a t 

t h i s time I w i l l c a l l Case 13,236, which appears on page 3. 

This i s the A p p l i c a t i o n of Preston E x p l o r a t i o n , L.L.C., f o r 

compulsory p o o l i n g , Eddy County, New Mexico. 

At t h i s time I ' l l c a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, Scott H a l l , M i l l e r 

S t r a t v e r t , P.A., Santa Fe, on behalf of the A p p l i c a n t , 

Preston E x p l o r a t i o n , L.L.C. 

I a n t i c i p a t e c a l l i n g only one witness t h i s 

morning, but I ask t h a t three be sworn i n . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any other appearances? 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, my name i s 

W i l l i a m F. Carr w i t h the Santa Fe o f f i c e of Holland and 

Hart, L.L.P. We represent i n t h i s case Chase Farms, a New 

Mexico general p a r t n e r s h i p , and Chase O i l Corporation. I 

have one witness. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any other appearances? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce of Santa Fe, 

rep r e s e n t i n g Murchison O i l and Gas, Incorporated. I have 

no witnesses. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any other appearances? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Can I please have a l l f o u r witnesses or p o t e n t i a l 

witnesses please stand t o be sworn a t t h i s time? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, as of note, I had f i v e 

people stand up t o be sworn. Mr. H a l l , you sa i d one 

witness, but t h r e e t o be sworn? 

MR. HALL: Correct. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And you had one witness, Mr. 

Carr? 

MR. CARR: Yes, s i r . My witness stood and was 

sworn. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, who was the mystery 

witness then? 

MR. WHEELER: I t h i n k Bo stood. You're not 

planning on c a l l i n g him, r i g h t ? 

MR. HALL: He's welcome t o t e s t i f y . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, please l e t the r e c o r d 

show t h a t f i v e witnesses were sworn, and l e t ' s make c a r e f u l 

whenever we do introduce them t h a t they were indeed sworn. 

Okay, Mr. — I s there any need f o r opening 

statements a t t h i s time? 

MR. HALL: No, Mr. Examiner. 

MR. CARR: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, a t t h i s time we would 
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c a l l Mark Wheeler t o the stand. 

MARK WHEELER. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. For the record, please s t a t e your name, s i r . 

A. Mark Wheeler. 

Q. Mr. Wheeler, where do you l i v e and by whom are 

you employed? 

A. Midland, Texas. I'm employed by Capstone O i l and 

Gas Company, L.P. 

Q. And what do you do f o r Capstone? 

A. Landman. 

Q. And what i s your r e l a t i o n s h i p and the 

r e l a t i o n s h i p of Capstone t o the A p p l i c a n t , Preston 

Exploration? 

A. Capstone i s i n the primary business of generating 

prospects. We put together the land g e n e r a l l y and t u r n 

prospects t o i n d u s t r y p a r t n e r s . We do not operate 

ourselves, and so we get the prospects ready t o d r i l l and 

then whatever the operator needs f o r us t o do t o continue 

t o get the p a r t i c i p a n t s together, t o t r y t o get w e l l s 

d r i l l e d , we take care of f o r them. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , and are you authorized t o speak on 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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behalf of the Ap p l i c a n t , Preston? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. You've p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before t h e D i v i s i o n 

and had your c r e d e n t i a l s accepted as a matter of re c o r d ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, i n the o l d l o c a t i o n . 

Q. And you're f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t ' s 

been f i l e d i n t h i s case and the subject area? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. HALL: Are the witness's c r e d e n t i a l s 

acceptable, Mr. Examiner? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any objection? 

MR. CARR: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: So q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) B r i e f l y , would you e x p l a i n t o the 

Examiner what Preston i s seeking by t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Preston seeks the p o o l i n g of a l l unjoined 

i n t e r e s t s i n the n o r t h h a l f of Section 29, Township 17 

South, Range 26 East, Eddy County, New Mexico, t o be 

dedicated t o the d r i l l i n g of our Roughneck Red 29 Number 1 

w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You've prepared c e r t a i n e x h i b i t s i n 

connection w i t h your testimony t h i s morning? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Let's look a t t h a t packet of e x h i b i t s . On top 
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you have a chronology of events I understand you 

p a r t i c i p a t e d i n the p r e p a r a t i o n of. E x h i b i t Number 1, your 

land p l a t , l e t ' s look a t t h a t , i f you could e x p l a i n t h a t t o 

the Examiner. 

A. This i s a land p l a t , a blown-up land p l a t of 

Section 29 i n d i c a t i n g the surface and bottomhole l o c a t i o n 

f o r the proposed w e l l . 

Q. And what's the primary o b j e c t i v e f o r the w e l l ? 

A. Morrow. 

Q. Let's look a t E x h i b i t 2, your ownership 

breakdown, i f you could e x p l a i n t h a t t o the Hearing 

Examiner. 

A. This i s a breakdown of the leasehold ownership i n 

the n o r t h h a l f of Section 29. I t shows a l l of the net 

acres f o r each p a r t y , the working i n t e r e s t before payout, 

a f t e r payout, and the working i n t e r e s t associated f o r each 

p a r t y . 

Q. And the working i n t e r e s t i n your second column 

before payout i s what we should be focused on t h i s morning? 

A. Yes. A c t u a l l y i t ' s the t h i r d column. 

Q. T h i r d column? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How long has Preston owned i t s lease i n t e r e s t i n 

the n o r t h h a l f of Section 29? 

A. Since January 15th of t h i s year. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Okay. Now, what percentage of the acreage i n the 

32 0-acre u n i t i s v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o the w e l l a t 

present? 

A. Approximately 52.69 percent. 

Q. Let's r e f e r t o E x h i b i t 2, i f you could i d e n t i f y 

t he i n t e r e s t s p r e s e n t l y committed and the i n t e r e s t s you're 

seeking t o pool today. 

A. Presently committed are the i n t e r e s t s , WJP 

E x p l o r a t i o n , which i s one of Preston's e n t i t i e s , down 

through CMW I n t e r e s t s , I n c . , and also, then, Cactus Energy, 

E3 Energy, and Saguaro Resources. Those p a r t i e s are 

committed. 

I'm s o r r y , d i d you ask which ones we're asking t o 

pool? 

Q. I n a d d i t i o n . 

A. We're asking t o pool Chase O i l Corporation; 

Murchison O i l and Gas, I n c . ; and MEC Petroleum Corporation. 

Q. Now, are you asking f o r the i m p o s i t i o n of a 200-

percent r i s k penalty against the unjoined working i n t e r e s t s 

t o the pool? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And does Preston seek t o be designated operator 

of t h e w e l l ? 

A. Yes, they do. 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , Mr. Wheeler, has Preston and 
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Capstone made a go o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o l o c a t e a l l t he 

i n t e r e s t owners, working i n t e r e s t owners, communicate w i t h 

them and o b t a i n t h e i r v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the w e l l ? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. What i s the proposed surface and bottomhole 

l o c a t i o n f o r the well? 

A. 1480 f e e t from the n o r t h l i n e and 1980 f e e t from 

the west l i n e of Section 29, 17-26. 

Q. And t h a t ' s a standard gas w e l l l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Would you e x p l a i n t o the Examiner your e f f o r t s 

and t he e f f o r t s of Preston t o o b t a i n the v o l u n t a r y 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n of the i n t e r e s t owners you're seeking t o pool 

today? 

A. We made a number of phone contacts over the 

months, as w e l l as v i s i t i n g p e r s o n a l l y w i t h t he 

re p r e s e n t a t i v e s of Chase O i l out i n the f i e l d and c e r t a i n l y 

over the phone. We've also t a l k e d e x t e n s i v e l y w i t h Mike 

Daugherty of Murchison, who i s also r e p r e s e n t i n g MEC 

Petroleum Corporation. 

Q. I f you could r e f e r t o the chronology you helped 

prepare, does t h a t provide a f a i r n a r r a t i v e of the h i s t o r y 

of events, your e f f o r t s t o o b t a i n everybody's p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

i n the w e l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t does. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. When d i d you f i r s t — When was the w e l l f i r s t 

proposed? 

A. The w e l l was f i r s t proposed January 13th of t h i s 

year. I t was done so a f t e r telephone conversation between 

myself and Mr. Lanning of Chase O i l . 

We were made aware by Mr. Lanning t h a t t h e r e was 

a p o t e n t i a l surface issue down the road. They had plans t o 

i n s t a l l a pecan orchard i n t h i s area, and we were made 

aware by him t h a t we had a p o t e n t i a l problem i n d r i l l i n g i n 

t h i s n o r t h h a l f f o r surface. But a t the time t h a t he 

contacted me, we asked him — you know, i n deference t o 

t r y i n g t o work w i t h him on the surface, I asked him where 

would be an okay l o c a t i o n f o r us t o d r i l l ? And he 

i n d i c a t e d t h a t as long as we stayed no f u r t h e r south than 

1480 f e e t o f f the n o r t h l i n e , t h a t we would stay out of the 

proposed orchard. 

So I went t o our g e o l o g i s t J e r r y Elger a t t h a t 

time and sa i d , you know, where i n your geology could we 

stake a l o c a t i o n t h a t would stay w i t h i n your proposed — or 

your expected channel. And t h a t ' s how we picked the 

l o c a t i o n of 1480 from the n o r t h , 1980 from the west. 

Q. Now, by reference t o your chronology, i s t h i s i n 

the January, 2004, time frame? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s during January of 2004, p r i o r t o our 

sending the AFE on January 13th. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. And t h a t ' s E x h i b i t 3, t h a t ' s your formal w e l l -

proposal l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let's look a t t h a t . The t h i r d page of t h a t , i t ' s 

the t h i r d copy of the same l e t t e r , addressed t o Caza 

Energy, L.L.C, Robert C. Chase, Richard L. Chase, Gerene 

Diane Chase Crouch. 

When you — your conversations w i t h Mr. Lanning, 

your dealings w i t h him, d i d you understand t h a t he was 

re p r e s e n t i n g Caza, Chase Farms, Chase Energy Corporation, 

and the i n d i v i d u a l s shown on your n o t i c e l e t t e r ? 

A. That was my understanding, yes, s i r . 

Q. Let's look a t E x h i b i t 4. What i s t h a t ? 

A. That would be t h e i r l e t t e r , Chase's l e t t e r t o us, 

dated February 19th. 

Q. And t h a t was t h e i r response t o your formal w e l l 

proposal l e t t e r of January 13th? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I n essence, what does the l e t t e r say? 

A. Well, b a s i c a l l y they i n d i c a t e d t h a t the i n t e r e s t 

was leased t o another p a r t y a t t h a t time, r a t h e r than the 

people t h a t we n o t i f i e d . Of course, a t the time we sent 

out the w e l l proposal, the e x i s t i n g o i l and gas lease was 

t o the p a r t i e s t h a t we n o t i f i e d . And they a l s o i n d i c a t e d 

t h a t they had taken an a d d i t i o n a l i n t e r e s t i n the area from 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Dennis R i l e y , a mineral i n t e r e s t lease, t h a t we thought had 

p r e v i o u s l y been held by production, so we had not 

approached him. And we were i n c o r r e c t i n t h a t assumption. 

But they also i n d i c a t e d they d i d not want f u r t h e r 

a c t i v i t y on the surface i n the south h a l f of the n o r t h 

h a l f , which was where our proposed l o c a t i o n was. 

Q. So i f I understand i t , a t the time of your 

January telephone conversations w i t h Mr. Lanning, and a t 

the time of your January 13th well-proposal l e t t e r , t he 

acreage was under lease t o Caza; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I t was under lease t o Caza and the other p a r t i e s 

t h a t we n o t i f i e d . 

Q. I see. And then by the time you received the 

response on February 19th, you found out from Mr. Lanning 

the acreage was then leased t o Chase O i l Corporation; i s 

t h a t accurate? 

A. Yes, s i r . The previous lease had exp i r e d a t the 

end of January and they gave themselves a new lease 

e f f e c t i v e February 1st, and i t went i n t o Chase O i l 

Corporation. 

Q. But a t the time you were proposing the w e l l , you 

were d e a l i n g w i t h the apparent i n t e r e s t owners of reco r d a t 

t h a t time? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Look a t E x h i b i t Number 5. I d e n t i f y t h a t , please 
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s i r . 

A. That i s a copy of the new lease from Chase Farms 

t o Chase O i l Corporation, dated February 1st of t h i s year. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f you look a t the second page of 

t h a t , i t shows county r e c o r d a t i o n i n f o r m a t i o n a t the bottom 

of t he page. What date was t h a t lease — 

A. I t was recorded — 

Q. — f i l e d of record? 

A. — i n Eddy County on February 5th of '04. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And who was the lessor? 

A. Lessor was Chase Farms. Yeah, Chase Farms. 

Q. And the lessee? 

A. Chase O i l Corporation. 

Q. And the lease i s executed by — 

A. Chase Farms. 

Q. By Mack C. Chase? 

A. Mack Chase, yes, general p a r t n e r of Chase Farms. 

Q. I f you would focus your a t t e n t i o n on page 2, 

paragraph 14 — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — of t h a t lease, what does t h a t provide f o r ? 

A. That says t h a t the "Lessee s h a l l not enter upon, 

occupy, t r a v e r s e , or otherwise use the s u r f a c e . . . f o r any 

purpose. 1 1 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now again, d u r i n g t h i s time frame was 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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i t your understanding t h a t the p r i n c i p a l s of Caza Energy, 

Chase O i l and Chase Farms were a l l the same? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And i f we look back t o E x h i b i t 4, which i s the 

Chase O i l Corporation l e t t e r dated February 19th, 2004 — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — signed by Mr. Lanning, who was he s i g n i n g on 

behalf of? 

A. I t s t a t e s he was s i g n i n g i t on behalf of Chase 

O i l Corporation and Chase Farms. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Mr. Wheeler, based on your experience 

as a p r o f e s s i o n a l landman, i s i t your view t h a t the lease, 

E x h i b i t 5, t h a t was granted t o Chase O i l by Chase Farms, i s 

something less than an arm's-length t r a n s a c t i o n ? 

MR. CARR: I ob j e c t . This c a l l s f o r a l e g a l 

conclusion, unless they can e s t a b l i s h whether or not these 

are — these are separate l e g a l e n t i t i e s , and I t h i n k Mr. 

Wheeler i s being asked t o reach a l e g a l conclusion as t o 

what t h e i r r e l a t i o n s h i p i s and whether or not t h i s i s arm's 

l e n g t h . 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, Mr. Wheeler i s 

es t a b l i s h e d as a p r o f e s s i o n a l landman witness, q u a l i f i e d t o 

express an opi n i o n . His area of e x p e r t i s e includes 

conveyancing, n e g o t i a t i o n of leases. This f a l l s squarely 

w i t h i n h i s area of e x p e r t i s e , and he i s q u a l i f i e d t o 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

17 

express an op i n i o n . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Objection sustained. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) I f you would, Mr. Wheeler, o u t l i n e 

f o r t he Hearing Examiner what Chase's o b j e c t i o n s were t o 

the o r i g i n a l surface l o c a t i o n proposed. 

A. Chase has plans t o i n s t a l l a — Chase Farms has 

plans t o i n s t a l l a pecan orchard across a m a j o r i t y of the 

south h a l f of the n o r t h h a l f of Section 29. At t h i s time 

t h e r e are no t r e e s i n the south h a l f , n o r t h h a l f , I 

be l i e v e . I n our conversations w i t h Mr. Lanning when we met 

w i t h him i n the f i e l d , t h a t was going t o go i n l a t e t h i s 

f a l l or e a r l y t h i s w i n t e r . There are pecan t r e e s i n the 

south h a l f of the s e c t i o n , but not any c u r r e n t l y i n the 

n o r t h h a l f of Section 29. 

Their o b j e c t i o n a t a l a t e r p o i n t , again, we were 

under the impression t h a t anything south of 1480 f e e t from 

the n o r t h l i n e they would o b j e c t t o , but anything up t o 

t h a t p o i n t from the n o r t h l i n e , t h a t would be okay w i t h 

them. That's how we picked our o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n . 

We — I guess subsequent t o t h a t , they decided 

they d i d not want t o have any surface disturbance occur i n 

the south h a l f , n o r t h h a l f , t h a t they c o n t r o l l e d . And so 

t h a t i s my opi n i o n or my understanding of t h e i r o b j e c t i o n . 

Q. I f you would r e f e r back t o your chronology again, 

about the February or March, 2004, time frame, were t h e r e 
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meetings a t the l o c a t i o n , on s i t e , w i t h Chase Farms and 

Chase O i l t o discuss the lo c a t i o n ? 

A. Three re p r e s e n t a t i v e s from Capstone met w i t h Mr. 

Lanning i n the f i e l d on l o c a t i o n on March 8 t h . We went out 

and saw the c u r r e n t pecan orchard i n the south h a l f , t a l k e d 

about a l t e r n a t i v e l o c a t i o n s f o r us t o d r i l l from i n t h i s 

n o r t h h a l f . We discussed a number of d i f f e r e n t l o c a t i o n s , 

and subsequent t o t h a t they got back t o us and s a i d they 

d i d not want any surface disturbance i n the south h a l f , 

n o r t h h a l f , and wished t h a t we would place the w e l l o f f 

s i t e and d r i l l d i r e c t i o n a l l y t o our bottomhole l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Now, were you p i c k i n g your bottomhole l o c a t i o n 

based on geology? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let's r e f e r t o E x h i b i t 6, i f you would i d e n t i f y 

t h a t , please, s i r . 

A. This i s a l e t t e r from Mr. Blue of Preston 

E x p l o r a t i o n , back t o Chase Farms a f t e r our March 8 t h 

meeting. A d d i t i o n a l l y , Randy Ford who i s an engineer t h a t 

represents Preston, also met out i n the f i e l d t o discuss 

l o c a t i o n w i t h Chase Farms a f t e r our March 8th meeting, and 

t h i s i s a l e t t e r back t o Chase farms, t o Mr. Lanning, 

r e q u e s t i n g t h a t we reach some s o r t of agreement as f a r as 

us d r i l l i n g a p o t e n t i a l w e l l d i r e c t i o n a l l y , but t o keep the 

surface — t o t r y t o work w i t h them t o keep the w e l l o f f 
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the surface, but t o — We wanted a reasonable t r a d e i n 

order t o get t h a t done. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, who i s Mr. Blue? 

A. Mr. Blue i s the land manager f o r Preston 

E x p l o r a t i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And so E x h i b i t 6 i s b a s i c a l l y a 

proposal l e t t e r t o address the surface concerns? 

A. Yes. 

Q. By the way, what i s the c u r r e n t use of the 

surface a t the proposed lo c a t i o n ? 

A. I t ' s j u s t a — I t ' s a plowed f i e l d , t here's 

n o t h i n g growing t h e r e . I t ' s j u s t a plowed, c u l t i v a t e d 

f i e l d , but there's a b s o l u t e l y — I don't b e l i e v e there's 

anything growing t h e r e . There d i d n ' t appear t o be when we 

were out t h e r e . 

Q. When Capstone and Preston were di s c u s s i n g changes 

t o the surface l o c a t i o n w i t h Chase, d i d you take i n t o 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n any p r i o r development i n the immediate 

p r o x i m i t y t o t h i s well? 

A. An p r i o r d r i l l i n g development? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Yes, s i r , we t a l k e d about — we obviously looked 

a t the key w e l l which i s t o the east of t h i s s e c t i o n , i n 

Section 28, t h a t ' s producing gas. 

And then a f t e r t h a t p o i n t Murchison had d r i l l e d a 
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w e l l i n t h i s n o r t h h a l f of Section 29, c a l l e d t he Tiz Now 

Number 1 w e l l , and we also discussed t h a t l o c a t i o n w i t h Mr. 

Lanning about p o s s i b l y r e - e n t e r i n g onto t h a t w e l l s i t e and 

d r i l l i n g d i r e c t i o n a l l y from th e r e . 

Q. Now, were your other p a r t i c i p a n t s i n the w e l l 

c o n d i t i o n i n g t h e i r p a r t i c i p a t i o n based on the understanding 

t h a t your bottomhole l o c a t i o n would be 1480 from the n o r t h 

l i n e and 1980 from the west l i n e ? 

A. Yes, s i r , they were. 

Q. And i f you'd r e f e r t o E x h i b i t 7, what i s t h a t , 

please? 

A. That's a l e t t e r from Cactus, I n c . , a l s o 

r e p r e s e n t i n g Saguaro Resources and E3 Energy, wherein they 

s t a t e t h e i r approval of our AFE i s conditioned upon us 

d r i l l i n g a t t h a t bottomhole l o c a t i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Were the a d d i t i o n a l costs of d r i l l i n g 

a d i r e c t i o n a l w e l l a concern t o Preston? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. B r i e f l y , would you t e l l the Hearing Examiner what 

those cost d i f f e r e n c e s would be between a s t r a i g h t - h o l e and 

a d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l ? 

A. For a completed w e l l , we estimate the d i f f e r e n c e 

i n cost t o be $226,000 a d d i t i o n a l f o r the d i r e c t i o n a l w e l l . 

Q. And i f i t becomes necessary today, does Preston 

have a d r i l l i n g engineer a v a i l a b l e t o t e s t i f y about the AFE 
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cost f o r the s t r a i g h t - h o l e and the d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l i n g ? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. Now, d i d the rev i s e d surface l o c a t i o n and the 

terms f o r p a r t i c i p a t i o n demanded by Chase adversely a f f e c t 

the economics of the d r i l l i n g p r o j e c t here? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And was there a concern t h a t Chase's demands f o r 

an a l t e r n a t e l o c a t i o n posed an undue geologic and 

mechanical r i s k t o the well? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Would you discuss the f u r t h e r e f f o r t s of Preston 

t o o b t a i n the v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n of the Chase 

i n t e r e s t s i n d r i l l i n g of the well? And i f you would r e f e r 

t o t he e x h i b i t s , s p e c i f i c a l l y E x h i b i t s 8, 13 and 14, 

b r i e f l y run through those and na r r a t e those f o r the Hearing 

Examiner. 

A. E x h i b i t 8 i s a l i s t i n g of — a c o m p i l a t i o n of 

e-mails t h a t went back and f o r t h between Mr. Lanning and 

Mr. Blue of Preston, discussing the tra d e terms t h a t we 

were d e s i r i n g i n order t o consider an a l t e r n a t e l o c a t i o n . 

As you can see, Mr. Lanning had responded p r e t t y 

much i n every instance t h a t they needed b a s i c a l l y t he same 

terms. I b e l i e v e there was a l i t t l e b i t of r e l e n t i n g 

toward the end, but they b a s i c a l l y wanted the same terms, 

would never take i n t o account the a d d i t i o n a l costs t h a t we 
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were expending or being asked t o expend. 

And then E x h i b i t 13 are some a d d i t i o n a l e-mails 

t h a t were a l i t t l e l a t e r on and, i n f a c t , r i g h t up u n t i l 

r i g h t before t h i s hearing. 

Q. And E x h i b i t 14, those are a d d i t i o n a l e-mails — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — f u r t h e r n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h Chase? 

A. Right, E x h i b i t 14 goes r i g h t up u n t i l May 19th, I 

b e l i e v e . 

Q. And b a s i c a l l y what was Chase demanding f o r t h e i r 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n ? 

A. They demanded t h a t they be c a r r i e d , and they d i d 

not want t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l , which i s b a s i c a l l y 

what they t o l d us a l l along. They f e l t l i k e we would 

probably be d r i l l i n g a dry hole, and they d i d not want t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e . But they — a f t e r promising us i n the f i e l d a 

sweetheart deal, then the terms they wanted was a t h i r d 

back i n a f t e r payout. 

Q. And there was no c o n s i d e r a t i o n given t o the 

a d d i t i o n a l d r i l l i n g cost f o r a d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l ? 

A. None, they j u s t wanted us t o bear those costs. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t E x h i b i t 9, i f you would 

i d e n t i f y t h a t , please, s i r . 

A. That i s a r e v i s e d AFE sent out by Preston on 

A p r i l 6th f o r an a l t e r n a t e l o c a t i o n . This i s when we f e l t 
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l i k e we were going t o be able t b h o p e f u l l y make some s o r t 

of a reasonable trade w i t h Caza or Chase, and we — a t the 

time, the estimated AFE was about $100,000 more. Since 

t h a t time a d d i t i o n a l costs have been f i g u r e d , and i n l i g h t 

of going r a t e s on everything the costs are s i g n i f i c a n t l y 

higher. That was sent out t o a l l of the p a r t i e s t h a t had 

i n d i c a t e d t h a t they wanted t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l , as 

w e l l as Chase and Murchison and MEC. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t s 10 and 11. 

A. E x h i b i t 10 i s a l e t t e r back from Murchison 

s t a t i n g t h a t they d i d not want t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l , 

they would give a six-month term assignment, 75-percent net 

revenue and back i n a t 30 percent. Again, t h a t i s an 

unworkable deal f o r us t o d r i l l t h i s w e l l . 

Q. And when you were deal i n g w i t h Murchison O i l and 

Gas, I n c . , i s i t your understanding they were also speaking 

f o r t he MEC — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes. I n f a c t , they r e f e r i n t h i s l e t t e r t o 

rep r e s e n t i n g both companies. 

Q. I see. And i n your o p i n i o n , d i d you make a good 

f a i t h e f f o r t t o o b t a i n the v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n of the 

Murchison and the MEC? 

A. Yes, s i r , we've been i n constant contact w i t h Mr. 
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Daugherty of Murchison over time. 

Q. And w i t h respect t o the Chase i n t e r e s t s , 

Murchison and MEC, you simply weren't able t o c u t a deal 

w i t h them; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's look a t E x h i b i t 12. Are the Saguaro, 

Cactus Energy and the E3 i n t e r e s t s now committed under a 

JOA? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. And i s t h a t attached t o — or referenced i n 

E x h i b i t 12? 

A. I t ' s referenced i n E x h i b i t 12, yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. I n view of you e f f o r t s t o n e g o t i a t e w i t h 

the Chase i n t e r e s t s t h e i r issuance of a lease a f t e r the 

f a c t , a f t e r the w e l l was proposed, Chase Farms t o Chase O i l 

w i t h the s u r f a c e - r e s t r i c t i o n s t i p u l a t i o n s , how does the 

D i v i s i o n propose — or how do you propose the D i v i s i o n 

handle the Chase i n t e r e s t s i n t h i s p o o l i n g case? 

A. We propose the D i v i s i o n pool t h e i r i n t e r e s t and 

a u t h o r i z e Preston t o d r i l l the w e l l a t i t s o r i g i n a l 

l o c a t i o n . 

Q. I hand you what's been marked as E x h i b i t 15, Mr. 

Wheeler. Could you i d e n t i f y t h a t , please, s i r ? 

A. This i s Preston's AFE f o r both a s t r a i g h t - h o l e 

and a d i r e c t i o n a l w e l l from the l o c a t i o n s we've been 
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dis c u s s i n g . 

Q. Now, the top page, E x h i b i t 15, t h a t ' s the most 

recent r e v i s e d s t r a i g h t - h o l e d r i l l i n g cost? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. For the record, what's the t o t a l f o r a completed 

w e l l ? 

A. $1,031,000. 

Q. And i f you look a t the next page, E x h i b i t 16, i s 

t h a t the AFE f o r the d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l ? 

A. The completed cost i s $1,261,800. 

Q. Okay. Now f o r the s t r a i g h t - h o l e d r i l l , are those 

costs i n l i n e w i t h what's being charged by other operators 

i n the area f o r s i m i l a r wells? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And have you made an estimate of the overhead and 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e costs w h i l e d r i l l i n g and producing the well? 

A. Yes, we have, $4100 per month f o r t h e d r i l l i n g 

r a t e and $410 per month f o r the producing r a t e . 

Q. And are those costs i n l i n e w i t h the Ernst and 

Young rates? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. And you are recommending t h a t those d r i l l i n g and 

producing overhead r a t e s be incorporated i n any order t h a t 

issues from t h i s hearing? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And does Preston request t h a t t he order provide 

f o r an adjustment of the d r i l l i n g and producing overhead 

r a t e s i n accordance w i t h the cu r r e n t COPAS b u l l e t i n f o r the 

area? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I n your op i n i o n , would g r a n t i n g Preston's 

A p p l i c a t i o n be i n the best i n t e r e s t s of conservation, t he 

pre v e n t i o n of waste and the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e 

r i g h t s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 1 through 16 and your chronology 

prepared by you or a t your d i r e c t i o n — 

A. Yes — 

Q. — w i t h your p a r t i c i p a t i o n ? 

A. — they were. 

MR. HALL: At t h i s time, Mr. Examiner, we move 

the admission of E x h i b i t s 1 through 16. We also have our 

hearing n o t i c e a f f i d a v i t , which w e ' l l mark as E x h i b i t 17. 

We tender t h a t as w e l l . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Do I have t h a t E x h i b i t Number 

17? 

MR. HALL: Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARR: Could I see a copy? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Let's see, I have an a f f i d a v i t 

t h a t i s — I s t h a t the one you're r e f e r r i n g t o , 17? 
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Any objections? 

MR. CARR: I don't have the n o t i c e a f f i d a v i t . 

Other than t h a t , I have no o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 1 through 17 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence. 

Before I — Let me j u s t ask one question. On 

E x h i b i t Number 2, the p a r t i e s , what i s t h a t Elger 

E x p l o r a t i o n , Inc.? I heard you say from WJP down t o CMW 

i n t e r e s t s had volunteered? 

THE WITNESS: I apologize, Mr. Examiner, I should 

have included Elger. I saw CMW as the l a s t one, but i t 

a c t u a l l y i s Elger, so t h a t group plus Cactus, E3 and 

Saguaro are a l l v o l u n t a r y — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: With Chase, Murchison and MEC. 

Okay, t h a t was — I j u s t — t h a t was a l l I had. 

THE WITNESS: I thought t h a t CMW was below Elger. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you. 

Mr. Carr, your witness. 

MR. CARR: Thank you, Mr. Stogner. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Mr. Wheeler, you're the landman f o r Capstone; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And how long have you been a landman w i t h 
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Capstone? 

A. Approximately t h r e e years. 

Q. Does Capstone operate any w e l l s i n New Mexico? 

A. No, we do not. 

Q. Has Capstone d r i l l e d any w e l l s i n t h i s s t ate? 

A. We do not operate anywhere. We have never 

operated a s i n g l e w e l l . 

Q. You're speaking today also f o r Preston? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does Preston operate any w e l l s i n New Mexico a t 

t h i s time? 

A. Yes. 

A. Have they d r i l l e d w e l l s i n New Mexico? 

A. Yes, they have. 

Q. Your j o b as a landman — c o r r e c t me i f I'm wrong 

— i s i n regard t o the formation of spacing u n i t s , i s t o 

attempt t o v o l u n t a r i l y combine the t r a c t s i n a proposed 

spacing u n i t ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's our d e s i r e , yes. 

Q. And i n t h i s case you're the land person who was 

responsible f o r combining the i n t e r e s t s i n the n o r t h h a l f 

of the s e c t i o n ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I n i t i a l l y . At a l a t e r p o i n t both Mr. Blue and I 

attempted t o work on t h i s . 

Q. When you do t h i s you're r e q u i r e d t o understand 
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o i l and gas co n t r a c t s and agreements, are you not? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And t o understand o i l and gas leases? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And property r i g h t s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And when you go about t h i s , you look i n the 

records and f i n d those documents, and t h a t helps guide you 

as you go about your work t o combine these t r a c t s ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Generally we have workers check the records f o r 

us i n the counties and then make r e p o r t s t o us. 

Q. But i t ' s based on those documents? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And then you r e l y on those as you go forward and 

do your work? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. When you were combining the i n t e r e s t s i n the 

n o r t h h a l f of t h i s s e c t i o n , d i d you examine the leases f o r 

the v a r i o u s p r o p e r t i e s i n the n o r t h h a l f of 29? 

A. Yes, s i r , the ones t h a t were of recor d a t t h a t 

time. 

Q. And you looked a t a l l of them, not j u s t t h e Caza 

or Mack Energy leases? 

A. We a c t u a l l y leased most of the e n t i r e n o r t h h a l f , 
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n o r t h h a l f of the s e c t i o n . 

Q. Have you leased the n o r t h h a l f of the northeast 

of t he section? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. That was a lease o r i g i n a l l y from someone named 

Joy? 

A. Jack Joy, yes. 

Q. And who was t h a t i n i t i a l l y leased to? 

A. I t was i n i t i a l l y leased, I b e l i e v e , t o — i t was 

e i t h e r t o Chase or t o Murchison. Murchison d r i l l e d t he 

w e l l , the Tiz Now w e l l . I don't r e c a l l , w i t h o u t going back 

i n my records t o see, who the lessee was on t h a t lease, but 

one of those two p a r t i e s . 

Q. But you have now acquired t h a t i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. The lease t h a t was d r i l l e d by Murchison i n t h e 

northeast q u a r t e r , i f we look a t Section 1, i t was not 

a c t u a l l y l o cated on the Joy lease, the n o r t h h a l f of the 

northe a s t , was i t ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. And do you know why t h a t was? 

A. I b e l i e v e Mr. Joy had a no-surface r e s t r i c t i o n on 

the n o r t h h a l f , northeast. 

Q. And so the w e l l was not located on t h a t property? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. Now, you now hold t h a t lease? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you're f a m i l i a r w i t h the terms of the Joy 

lease? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you know i t has a no-surface-occupancy 

p r o v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. When you advise your management about whether or 

not they can develop t h i s property, do you have an o p i n i o n 

as t o whether or not they can d r i l l on the n o r t h h a l f of 

the northeast? 

A. My opinion would be, since we agreed t o a lease 

t h a t has a no-surface occupancy on the n o r t h h a l f , 

n o r t h e a s t , t h a t we could not d r i l l t h e r e . 

Q. And so you would honor t h a t p r o v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, ab s o l u t e l y . 

Q. When you looked a t the leases t h a t cover the 

n o r t h h a l f of t h i s s e c t i o n back i n 2003, you were aware, 

were you not, t h a t the Chase Farms lease t o Caza was set t o 

— scheduled t o expire of i t s own terms the end of January? 

A. We assumed t h a t i t would. I mean, leases can be 

extended or amended, but a t the time we knew i t was under 

lease, but we d i d not know what the s t a t u s would be a f t e r 

January 31st. 
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Q. And th e r e would e i t h e r be an extension of the 

lease, or i t could be re-leased a t t h a t — 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. So a new lease was issued, you're not saying t h a t 

t h e r e was anything improper about Chase Farms i s s u i n g a new 

lease on t h i s p r o perty a t the end of the lease term, are 

you? 

A. I don't t h i n k there's anything improper about 

them about them i s s u i n g a new lease. I don't know whether 

g i v i n g a lease i n t e r n a l l y i s e x a c t l y w i t h i n the l e t t e r of 

the law, but t h a t ' s , you know, my op i n i o n . 

Q. You don't know i f t h i s was a — When you say 

" i n t e r n a l l y " , you're not making any judgment on the s t a t u s 

of the p a r t i e s l e g a l l y , are you? 

A. No. I mean, I know Chase Farms and Chase O i l 

Corporation are d i f f e r e n t . 

Q. And we're not d i s p u t i n g t h a t Caza, Chase O i l , 

Chase Farms a l l have overlapping ownership. 

Have you compared the — The lease t h a t was 

issued by Chase Farms t o Chase O i l i n e a r l y February t h i s 

year, t h a t contains a no-surface-occupancy — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — p r o v i s i o n , does i t not? 

A. Yes, s i r . That's the clause we went through 

e a r l i e r . 
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Q. Ad t h a t i s i d e n t i c a l t o the no-surface-occupancy 

p r o v i s i o n i n the Joy lease, the n o r t h h a l f of the 

nor t h e a s t , i s i t not? 

A. They both have the same i n t e n t . I'm not sure the 

language i s e x a c t l y i d e n t i c a l w i t h o u t comparing i t . 

Q. You haven't done tha t ? 

A. I've not r e c e n t l y — I mean, I nego t i a t e d the 

Jack Joy lease, but I don't r e c a l l i f the exact language 

was used by Chase when they d i d t h e i r lease. 

Q. But you'd agree they both c o n t a i n a p r o v i s i o n , a 

no-surface-occupancy provision? 

A. Yes. 

Q. As you go about your work as a landman, you're 

f a m i l i a r w i t h leases, f e d e r a l leases, s t a t e leases, fee 

leases, a l l of the above; i s n ' t t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I f t h e r e was a f e d e r a l lease on t h i s p r o p e r t y 

t h a t contained a no-surface occupancy p r o v i s i o n , would your 

o p i n i o n be t h a t t h a t would preclude the d r i l l i n g of a w e l l 

on t h a t t r a c t ? 

MR. HALL: Objection, i t ' s — on the basis of 

relevance. Also c a l l s f o r speculation. 

MR. CARR: I'm going t o r e s t a t e the question. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Please do. 

Q. (By Mr. Carr) I f there was a f e d e r a l lease on 
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the n o r t h h a l f of Section -- and you're an expert, and 

these are the f a c t s I'm going t o ask you t o assume — t h a t 

t h e r e was a f e d e r a l lease on the n o r t h h a l f of Section 29, 

and t h e r e was a no-surface-occupancy p r o v i s i o n i n t h a t 

lease, would you d i s c l o s e t h a t t o your management when you 

were disc u s s i n g w i t h them whether or not they could develop 

the acreage? 

MR. HALL: Same o b j e c t i o n , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Overruled. 

THE WITNESS: I would look a t the s t i p u l a t i o n , 

and we would f o l l o w the l e t t e r of the law, assuming t h a t we 

took t h a t lease subject t o t h a t . 

Q. (By Mr. Carr) When you say i f you took a lease 

s u b j e c t t o t h a t , what do you mean by t h a t phrase, t a k i n g a 

lease subject t o a p r o v i s i o n of a lease? 

A. I f we're aware of a s t i p u l a t i o n , the no-surface-

occupancy, a t the time we pay co n s i d e r a t i o n and purchase a 

lease then, you know, we're t a k i n g t h a t lease, buying t h a t 

lease, subject t o t h a t s t i p u l a t i o n . 

Q. I f the lease contains t h a t s t i p u l a t i o n and you 

don't purchase i t but acquire i t , or acquire the r i g h t s t o 

— or you combine those lands by a compulsory p o o l i n g 

a c t i o n , would t h a t give you the r i g h t t o go on the surface 

of a lease t h a t had a no-surface-occupancy p r o v i s i o n ? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, l e t me s t a t e an 
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o b j e c t i o n a t t h i s p o i n t i r i view of Mr. C a r r 1 s e a r l i e r 

o b j e c t i o n t h a t questioning c a l l s f o r a l e g a l conclusion on 

the witness, an o b j e c t i o n which you sustained. I t h i n k 

t h i s question does as w e l l , a t t h i s p o i n t . I make the same 

o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, I t h i n k t he problem w i t h 

t h i s case i s t h a t we have m u l t i p l e leases i n the n o r t h h a l f 

of t h i s s e c t i o n . Some contain no surface occupancy 

p r o v i s i o n , some do not. And there i s a question t h a t 

r e q u i r e s an i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h i s lease. Obviously, i f 

you're going t o honor some and perhaps not honor oth e r s , 

t here's an und e r l y i n g question t h a t r e q u i r e s a l e g a l 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the e f f e c t of those p r o v i s i o n s . 

I would suggest t o you t h a t t h a t i s not a 

question f o r the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , and I would 

suggest t o you t h a t t h i s case should be continued f o r 30 

days t o l e t the p a r t i e s n e g o t i a t e . I f they're unable t o 

reach a n e g o t i a t i o n w i t h i n 30 days, Chase O i l Corporation 

w i l l f i l e a p e t i t i o n w i t h the D i s t r i c t Court of Eddy County 

asking t h a t the sta t u s of t h e i r no-surface-occupancy 

p r o v i s i o n be determined t o see i f i t i s b i n d i n g on people 

who subsequently take t h a t p r operty e i t h e r v o l u n t a r i l y or 

through an exercise of the p o l i c e power of the s t a t e . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, we would o b j e c t t o any 
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request f o r a continuance or delay i n these proceedings a t 

t h i s p o i n t . The hearing on t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n was continued 

a t l e a s t t h r e e times, I b e l i e v e , a t the request of Chase. 

We agreed t o a l l three continuances. We t h i n k there's been 

adequate o p p o r t u n i t y f o r n e g o t i a t i o n s here. I t h i n k we've 

demonstrated t h a t through Mr. Wheeler's testimony and the 

e x h i b i t s . 

I t h i n k Mr. Carr i s c o r r e c t i n the sense t h a t 

t h e r e i s a l e g a l dispute about the e f f e c t of the surface 

s t i p u l a t i o n . I t h i n k Mr. Carr i s t r y i n g t o place the 

D i v i s i o n i n the p o s i t i o n of having t o l i t i g a t e t h a t and 

make t h a t determination, when p r i o r e x i s t i n g precedent 

orders have d i r e c t e d t h a t the D i v i s i o n and Commission do 

not have the j u r i s d i c t i o n t o do so. 

I would r e f e r you t o Order Number R-12,093-A, Mr. 

Examiner. That's the order t h a t issued from the V a l l e s 

Caldera Trust proceeding, and i n t h a t order the Commission 

determined t h a t the D i v i s i o n does not have the j u r i s d i c t i o n 

t o determine t i t l e or the r i g h t s of any p a r t y t o occupy 

pr o p e r t y . 

And t h a t ' s e x a c t l y the case here. I t h i n k you do 

have the j u r i s d i c t i o n t o proceed w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n and 

then issue an order accordingly. I f th e r e i s a d i s p u t e f o r 

l i t i g a t i o n , the p a r t i e s may nego t i a t e t h a t o u t s i d e of the 

context of t h i s hearing. Chase, i f i t wishes, may t r y t o 
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get that question answered in the d i s t r i c t courts, but i t 

should not be a basis for delaying t h i s proceeding any 

further. 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, Valles Caldera does say 

what Mr. Scott Hall j u s t said, that i s , you don't have the 

rig h t to determine who has the right to occupy the 

property. 

Now, the question here i s not whether or not 

negotiations have taken place. They have. The question 

here i s not whether or not these i n t e r e s t s can be combined. 

They can. We don't oppose that. We don't oppose combining 

a l l the mineral in t e r e s t s in the north half of t h i s section 

for an appropriate well. 

But the question here i s , do they have a righ t to 

occupy the surface when the lease entered between separate 

lega l e n t i t i e s says you may not use the surface. I t 

doesn't prevent development. I t means moving the red dot, 

the surface location on t h e i r Exhibit 1, to the north, to 

the l i n e j u s t above the word "OXY", and they access the 

minerals from a point where we a l l agree they have a righ t 

to occupy the property. I f they don't have a ri g h t to 

occupy the property, they can't meet a statutory 

precondition to a pooling order, and that i s , they must 

t e l l you they have the right to d r i l l . The righ t to d r i l l 

the well, they propose. 
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And we submit t o you, because of t h i s lease 

p r o v i s i o n , they do not have t h a t r i g h t . And t h e r e f o r e they 

cannot pool these lands f o r t h i s w e l l . We wouldn't oppose 

p o o l i n g i t f o r a w e l l located i n the n o r t h h a l f of the 

northwest. 

They've also t e s t i f i e d , Mr. Wheeler d i d , t h a t 

they had considered d i r e c t i o n a l l y d r i l l i n g from the 

Murchison l o c a t i o n . I f you look a t t h a t on E x h i b i t 1 and 

you can see the distance they considered d i r e c t i o n a l l y 

d r i l l i n g t o get t h e i r proposed l o c a t i o n , t o honor the lease 

p r o v i s i o n s , they only have t o move t o the n o r t h t o get on 

the p r o p e r t y t h a t bears the name Leonard L. Fellows. 

We submit they do not have — cannot e s t a b l i s h 

they have a r i g h t t o pool w i t h t h i s w e l l , t h a t t he 

Commission and D i v i s i o n have c o r r e c t l y announced t h a t you 

don't have the r i g h t t o determine i f they can occupy the 

pr o p e r t y . That must be done by the c o u r t s . 

Our l a s t correspondence i n Mr. Wheeler's 

documents say we were w i l l i n g t o t a l k t o our management 

about reducing the burden we were r e q u i r i n g . And we submit 

t o you the way t h i s should be handled i s , we should have 30 

days w i t h i n which e i t h e r t o agree t o some s o l u t i o n 

v o l u n t a r i l y , or we w i l l f i l e a d e c l a r a t o r y judgment a c t i o n 

i n t he D i s t r i c t Court of Eddy County, New Mexico. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, I t h i n k Chase i s simply 
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t r y i n g t o throw up dust and obscure the purpose of t h i s 

proceeding. Again, Chase i s t r y i n g t o place you i n the 

p o s i t i o n of having t o l i t i g a t e and make a d e t e r m i n a t i o n 

about l e g a l r i g h t s . 

We've already e s t a b l i s h e d t h a t the lease issued 

by Chase t o Chase i s not owned by Capstone or Preston. 

They're not bound t o i t , they're not p a r t i e s t o i t , i t was 

not n e g o t i a t e d w i t h them. 

What Mr. Carr wants you t o do i s make a 

d e t e r m i n a t i o n whether or not t h a t surface s t i p u l a t i o n binds 

p a r t i e s who are not a p a r t y t o the lease. I submit you 

cannot do t h a t . 

There's an underlying question here, though, Mr. 

Examiner, where i t appears, as i n t h i s case, t h a t the lease 

i s not the product of an arm's le n g t h n e g o t i a t i o n and 

t r a n s a c t i o n and i t was issued f o r purposes of circumventing 

the D i v i s i o n ' s j u r i s d i c t i o n t o prevent you from i s s u i n g an 

order a t a l o c a t i o n proposed by the A p p l i c a n t . Then you 

have a r i g h t t o i n q u i r e about the terms of t h a t lease and 

the circumstances of i t s n e g o t i a t i o n . There's precedent 

f o r you doing so. 

And I would r e f e r you, Mr. Examiner, t o two other 

cases i n a d d i t i o n t o the V a l l e s Caldera case. 

I f you would look a t Order Number R-7335, i t ' s 

the Rio Pecos-Ralph Nix case. Circumstances s i m i l a r t o 
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t h i s . A f t e r a w e l l was proposed, a f t e r a p o o l i n g 

proceeding was commenced, a p a r t y put a 50-percent 

o v e r r i d i n g burden on i t s lease i n t e r e s t . And the D i v i s i o n 

went r i g h t through t h a t , saw through t h a t t r a n s a c t i o n and 

sa i d , That's an improper way, t h a t ' s an improper means t o 

circumvent the D i v i s i o n ' s j u r i s d i c t i o n . I t would not allow 

i t . 

I would also r e f e r you t o Order Number 

R-ll,573-B. That's the l a s t of the s e r i e s of the B e t t i s , 

Boyle and S t o v a l l Sunwest cases, where again t h e r e were 

n e g o t i a t i o n s a f t e r a w e l l was proposed t o an i n t e r e s t 

owner, and t h a t i n t e r e s t owner turned around and issued a 

lease t o an a f f i l i a t e c o r p o r a t i o n . Neither the D i v i s i o n 

nor the Commission allowed t h a t . I t viewed t h a t as 

improper and an improper means t o circumvent the agency•s 

j u r i s d i c t i o n again, and i t allowed the proceeding t o go 

forward and the i n t e r e s t s were pooled. 

I have copies of those cases f o r , Mr. Examiner, 

i f you'd l i k e them. 

MR. CARR: And Mr. Stogner, I have j u s t one very 

b r i e f response. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, keep i t j u s t f o r a sec 

here. 

Statement, Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, I j u s t want t o make c l e a r 
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what we be l i e v e we're doing. We're not t r y i n g t o 

circumvent the j u r i s d i c t i o n of the OCD, we're t r y i n g t o 

honor i t as announced i n the V a l l e s Caldera case. We're 

not t r y i n g t o put you i n a p o s i t i o n where you determine 

p r o p e r t y r i g h t s , we're t r y i n g t o move t h a t question where 

i t belongs, t o the D i s t r i c t Court, as i t was i n the 

TMBR/Sharp-Arrington f i g h t r e c e n t l y where the e f f e c t of an 

APD was going t o be determined based on some u n d e r l y i n g 

p r o p e r t y r i g h t s , and the D i v i s i o n stood down w h i l e t h a t 

matter was pursued i n the c o u r t . That's we t h i n k i s the 

app r o p r i a t e way t o go here. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I'm going t o take a 10-minute 

recess a t t h i s p o i n t . 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 9:21 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 9:36 a.m.) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Hearing w i l l come t o order. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, d u r i n g the break we were 

successful i n n e g o t i a t i n g a compromise w i t h Chase O i l 

Corporation. 

Chase w i l l consent t o being pooled f o r i t s own 

lease from Chase Farms, as w e l l as f o r the R i l e y lease 

acreage, provided t h a t the w e l l i s d r i l l e d from a surface 

l o c a t i o n 1200 f e e t from the n o r t h l i n e and 1280 f e e t from 

the west l i n e , g ive or take as necessary t o accommodate 

some c e r t a i n surface considerations over t h e r e . 
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We w i l l provide you w i t h a s t i p u l a t e d p o o l i n g 

order. We t h i n k there's s u f f i c i e n t evidence i n the record 

f o r you t o make the f i n d i n g s of a basic p o o l i n g order. We 

don't b e l i e v e there's any f u r t h e r need f o r evidence i n t h i s 

case. 

And w i t h t h a t , t h a t concludes our case on d i r e c t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: What was the — from a surface 

l o c a t i o n t o what? 

MR. HALL: The same bottomhole l o c a t i o n , 1480 

from the n o r t h l i n e , 1980 from the west l i n e . 

MR. CARR: And Mr. Stogner, Mr. H a l l has 

c o r r e c t l y s t a t e d our agreement. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, i s t h e r e any f u r t h e r 

need f o r evidence today? 

MR. CARR: No, s i r . 

MR. HALL: Not on behalf of the A p p l i c a n t . 

MR. CARR: And not on behalf of Chase Farms or 

Chase O i l Corporation. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. Anything f u r t h e r i n 

t h i s matter? 

MR. CARR: Nothing. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, Case 13,236 w i l l be 

taken under advisement. 

Thank you, gentlemen. 

MR. CARR: Thank you very much. Thank you f o r 
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t a k i n g t h i s out of order. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: You're welcome. I appreciate 

everybody's indulgence and patience i n t h a t . 

And we w i l l never f i n d out who the f i f t h mystery 

witness was. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

9:38 a.m.) 

* * * 
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